MINUTES
ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
HELD ON THE 127 DAY OF NOVEMBER 2015 AT 9:00 A.M.
MEETING ROOM - DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES BUILDING
4230 ELKHART ROAD, GOSHEN, INDIANA

1. The regular meeting of the Elkhart County Plam@ission was called to order by the

Chairperson, Steve Warner, with the following memlresent: Tony Campanello, Steve Warner,
Roger Miller, Steve Edwards, Tom Stump, and Frankchese. Jeff Burbrink, Lori Snyder, and

Blake Doriot were absent. Staff members presenew€hris Godlewski, Plan Director; Jason

Auvil, Planning Manager; Liz Gunden, Planner; Katlli)lson, Administrative Manager; and James
W. Kolbus, Attorney for the Board. Mark Kanney, far, was absent.

2. A motion was made and secondtilller/Lucchese) that the minutes of the regular meeting
of the Elkhart County Plan Commission held on tfled@y of October 2015 be approved as
submitted and the motion was carried unanimously.

3. A motion was made and second@diller/Lucchese) that the Elkhart County Zoning
Ordinance and Elkhart County Subdivision Contralli@ance be accepted as evidence for today’s
hearings. With a unanimous vote, the motion wasech

* |t is noted that Mr. Doriot was not present for the first two items due to a potential conflict of
interest.

4, The application for the vacation of an east/vadisly right-of-way, forRipplecreek, LLC,
represented by B. Doriot & Associates, Inc., orpprty located on the east side of CR 13, 614 ft.
south of CR 142, common address of 67586 CR 1inrUTownship, zoned R-1, was presented
at this time.

Ms. Gunden presented the Staff Report/Staff sl which is attached for review @ase
#67586CR 13-151005-1.

Denny Lyon, 21138 SR 120, Elkhart, was preseriiedalf of B. Doriot & Associates, Inc.,
and the petitioner. He repeated that a sewer easenoelld be given in the event of a Foraker
sewer project.

There were no remonstrators present.

A motion was made and secondédcchese/Miller) that the public hearing be closed and
the motion was carried with a unanimous vote.

The Board examined said request and after duedssagon and deliberation:

Motion: Action: Approve, Moved by Tony CampanelloSeconded by Roger Miller, that the
Advisory Plan Commission recommend to the Boar@aiinty Commissioners that this request for
the vacation of an east/west alley right-of-way Rypplecreek, LLC,be approved in accordance
with the Staff Analysis, provided that Elkhart Coureserves and or the petitioner agrees to donate
a utility easement to remain across the existitgy aight-of-way for a potential Foraker sewer
installation project.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call voi(nmary: Yes = 6).

Yes. Frank Lucchese, Roger Miller, Steve Warner, Ste#iwards, Tom Stump, Tony
Campanello.



PAGE 2 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

5. The application for the vacation of a portionaotounty right-of-way known as lllinois
Street, foDiocese of Ft. Wayne St. Vincent Cemeteepresented by B. Doriot & Associates, Inc.,
on property located on the south end of Jones tSts@4 ft. south of CR 16, 344 ft. west of
Nappanee Street (SR 19), in Baugo Township, zor2dviRis presented at this time.

Mr. Auvil presented the Staff Report/Staff Areay which is attached for review @ase
#00000ILLINOIS STREET-151005-1.

Denny Lyon, 21138 SR 120, Elkhart, was preseriiedralf of B. Doriot & Associates, Inc.,
and the petitioner but offered no comments.

There were no remonstrators present.

A motion was made and second#filler/Lucchese) that the public hearing be closed and
the motion was carried with a unanimous vote.

The Board examined said request and after duedssagon and deliberation:
Motion: Action: Approve,Moved by Tony CampanelloSeconded by Frank Lucchese, that the
Advisory Plan Commission recommend to the Boar@aiinty Commissioners that this request for
the vacation of a portion of a county right-of-wkaown as lllinois Street fdbiocese of Ft. Wayne
St. Vincent Cemeteripe approved in accordance with the Staff Analysis.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vomi(nmary: Yes = 6).
Yes. Frank Lucchese, Roger Miller, Steve Warner, Ste#iwards, Tom Stump, Tony
Campanello.

* |t is noted that Blake Doriot arrived at the Board at thistime.

* See item 10, page 6, for the application for a zone map change from R-2 to A-1, for Alvin J.
Heimsrepresented by Progressive Engineering, Inc.

* See item 11, page 6, for the application for a zone map change from B-3 to B-1, for Conrad B.
Bailey, Trustee, Conrad B. Bailey Revocable Tru&t,Rhonda S. Bailey, Trustee, Rhonda S.
Bailey Revocable Trust

* Seeitem 14, page 9, for the application for a zone map change fromA-1 & M-1 & M-2to A-1, for
Steven & Marilyn Yoder

* See item 15, page 10, for the application for a zone map change from M-2 to A-1, for Atlee O. &
Mary Jane Bontragerrepresented by J. Charles Zercher, Kindig & Soat, PC.

* Seeitem 17, page 11, for the application for a zone map change from M-1/R-1 to A-1, for Gregory
T. & Bethany S. Shank

* See item 18, page 11, for the application for an amendment to a site plan / support drawing for a
Detailed Planned Unit Development known as BRISTOL PARK FOR INDUSTRY - PHASE 4
DPUD M-2,for Universal Trailer of Indiana, LLC, represented by Marbach, Brady & Weaver, Inc.



PAGE 3 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

6. Grand Design’s Revised Commitment

Mr. Auvil at this time introduced the revised versof a commitment imposed on Grand
Design’s September 2014 rezoning from A-1 to Mie Tevision was to commitment 1 and allows
septic system installation under conditions. Thaesesl commitment will appear before the Board
of County Commissioners November 16, 2015, Mr. As&id, noting that the revision may now be
moot, as a sewer agreement has been reached.

The Board examined the revised commitment, ard dfte consideration and deliberation:
Motion: Action: Approve, Moved by Tom Stump,Seconded by Frank Lucchese, that the
Advisory Plan Commission approve the revised comenitt prepared for Grand Design RV, LLC,
and presented by Mr. Auvil. The motion was carvigith a unanimous vote.

7. 2016 Planning Calendar

Mr. Auvil asked for approval of the 2016 plannintplendar, included in the
Commissioners’ packets, at this time.

The Board examined said request, and after dugdmration and deliberation:
Motion: Action: Approve,Moved by Roger Miller,Seconded by Frank Lucchese, that the request
for adoption of the 2016 planning calendar be apgmoThe motion was carried with a unanimous
vote.

8. Planning Staff

Mr. Godlewski at this time announced Administrativlanager Kathy Wilson’s January
2016 retirement and mentioned that Planner Marknkgnwas hospitalized a week ago. No return
date was available.

9. Administrative and Industrial Subdivisions

The Subdivision Control Ordinance, adopted in 20@@resented a major change to the
county's approach to division of land, began Mr.d@wski. It introduced the administrative
subdivision and removed the industrial subdivisibat these subdivision types remain topics of
discussion. While the Subdivision Control Ordinacoeld receive minor updates, to correct such
things as typos, the mentioned subdivision typedtse most probable subjects of amendment. Ms.
Gunden has reformatted the Subdivision Control i@2maice, however, so that its formatting mirrors
that of the zoning ordinance, he added.

Under the industrial subdivision, continued Mr.d&avski, a developer could outline a 40-
acre area, and a deed could be submitted and reedarmed at the time of an individual parcel’s
development. No platting was needed. Also under itliristrial subdivision, 400-500 new
commercial starts came in per year before the semgswhereas 30 per year, on average, are now
received. Mr. Godlewski asked, then, whether tlokisirial subdivision, which would not be used
often, should be reinstated.

He also asked whether the administrative subdivjsavailable when a new parcel is larger
than three acres and meets basic developmentalastisn should remain. The administrative



PAGE 4 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

subdivision does not address residual parcelsistirex houses, he noted, so it is unclear.

Mr. Campanello asked whether the two subdivisigres follow the comprehensive plan
and whether any changes to the Subdivision Co@rdinance would follow it. He asked also
whether the county has enough land for more ingustre comprehensive plan does not designate
growth areas, said Mr. Godlewski; it says only thatcounty would like to grow in certain ways.

Mr. Doriot commented that under the industrialduision, he could subdivide a 40-acre
piece, maybe install a road, and be done. Secasdeould be brought in later. Current guidelines,
however, require that lots and easements be piaitedly, he said. The requirement is a challenge
when a client needs a 15-acre lot but lots of dwlg, three, or seven acres, for instance, are
available.

Mr. Kolbus asked who approved Secondaries underirtdustrial subdivision, but no
response came. Mr. Godlewski confirmed only thatoSdaries for minor subdivisions are
presently staff reviewed. Mr. Doriot and Mr. Milléhen agreed that a technical committee—
approved Secondary should not have to appear bé#ierglat committee. Mr. Doriot added,
however, that the plat committee should review eoBédary when the staff determines that such
review is necessary. Mr. Kolbus then said flexipiWithin the subdivision process that allows as-
needed lot design has been discussed before.

Mr. Campanello asked why the current guidelinegegung subdivision of industrial land
should be changed when there are now so few inalustarts. Mr. Godlewski said first that the
industrial subdivision’s use was based on volunte Gounty should be ready for the demand to
come back, Mr. Doriot then argued. In response, Gémnpanello asked whether there is enough
land to accommodate new industrial demand and whetle comprehensive plan rules out new
industrial development. Rezoning and an indusstédivision, without a developer having to guess
lot size, should be the total requirement, answaved Doriot. Mr. Kolbus responded to Mr.
Campanello noting that his questions can only b®vared on a case-by-case basis, and Mr.
Godlewski said that no new industrial parks araema at this time.

Mr. Doriot then reexplained the value of the irtdat subdivision for Mr. Campanello, a
private developer, and Mr. Stump asked why thegstréil subdivision was taken away. Mr. Doriot
said that Bob Watkins made the change, and Mr. €é»¢sMi said that the rationale for the removal
was that “when the three-acre rule changed, thedad to be something added.”

Mr. Campanello gave the example of a purchaselmck five acres within an industrial
subdivision and asked Mr. Doriot whether the pthttead he mentioned above would necessarily
provide access to the five acres. Mr. Doriot’'s oese was that it would, as the new lot must be a
legal lot, with frontage on the already-plattedd-dslr. Kolbus agreed. Mr. Miller asked how many
industrial developments have had to see repla@usecf the removal of the industrial subdivision,
and Mr. Doriot thought all have. Mr. Miller thenidahat lot size should not matter if an industrial
subdivision receives initial approval, and Mr. @rtommented that the staff should still be able to
bring a Secondary it is not comfortable with to pitet committee. Mr. Miller essentially asked how
the need for appearance of a Secondary beforeldheg@nmittee would be determined, and Mr.
Godlewski said that current protocol governing miagnor changes could be adapted.

Responding to Mr. Campanello’s concern over adity of land for new industrial
development, Barry Pharis, Brads-Ko Engineering&v8ying, Inc., 1009 S. Ninth St., Goshen,
strongly encouraged the Board to consider reimgtdkie industrial subdivision, which, he said, will
allow more creative development on existing indaistand. Mr. Pharis gave the example of an 80-



PAGE 5 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

acre tract with a platted 1,000 ft. road, onlyfirg& 300 ft. of which is built and bonded. Undket
example, a client interested in a backlot has gt®ws of (1) developing the backlot by paying for
the rest of the road and (2) using a front lotnequiring road construction. Availability of opti®n
will encourage Elkhart County development, Mr. Fhbeld.

Mr. Kolbus mentioned that Goshen has a procesdasita the industrial subdivision now
being considered and asked Mr. Pharis about hisrigxice with Goshen’s process. Mr. Pharis’s
response was that while it is somewhat flexibldedtures too many staff-placed attachments “to
make it, in Goshen, realistic,” and that industpiadjects still go before Goshen’s plan commission
and plat committee.

Mr. Kolbus then said that Mr. Pharis should beluded in any discussion over
reinstatement of the industrial subdivision so thhat he faces in Goshen can be avoided in the
county. A Middlebury development Brads-Ko engindei@ Kermit Troyer stands as an example
of exactly what the Board is talking about, Mr. Bhaaid; “six acres here, ten acres there.” He als
agreed that the staff should have the ability tbopen Secondary review.

Mr. Godlewski said it was clear that the Board igdrto move forward on reinstatement of
the industrial subdivision.

* |t isnoted that Mr. Miller stepped down from the Board at thistime.

Moving on to the administrative subdivision, Mro@ewski asked whether the Subdivision
Control Ordinance should address residual parceldeo left alone. While he did say the
administrative subdivision gives petitioners chsjcéhere are as many interpretations of the
administrative subdivision as there are readeth@fgoverning ordinance, and the administrative
subdivision is an open-ended provision. He cautotiet refinement will not be easy and
referenced 2009 debate over the issue.

Around 2009 a public meeting was held during whpliting every three-acre piece
“through the subdivision ordinance” was consideszigl Mr. Doriot. The Amish in attendance did
not favor what was being considered and threatéméeave the county; thus the administrative
subdivision came about. It was a way to approvedisigion quickly, with review of only
developmental project aspects like septic instaffasaid Mr. Doriot.

Interpretation of the administrative subdivisiantlhe problem, commented Mr. Pharis. In
some cases the public is told that the adminiggauibdivision cannot be used unless a new home
will be built. In other cases the administrativedivision is used to parcel an existing residerfte o
from a farm for transfer. In many cases, the highdepartment must do line-of-sight review and
the health department requires soil borings, andMaris said that he now recommends that his
clients go with the minor subdivision in any casethe time and money spent on both subdivision
types is similar and the clients’ products are réed and are “forever.” He concluded suggesting
that the administrative subdivision be streamlia@d made applicable to both cases mentioned
above.

Mr. Doriot said that when he and Loren Sloat, Nayge attorney, would perform a split
from a large farm parcel to create a farmette, theyld place a clause on both resulting deeds
designating “the buildable portion” and requiringther subdivision to “go through some portion of
the subdivision ordinance.” Whether the new traquired an administrative or a minor subdivision
would remain a question.



PAGE 6 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

Mr. Godlewski asked whether both discussed vasgeif administrative subdivision should
be allowed, and Mr. Doriot suggested a meetingigiog Mr. Godlewski, Mr. Pharis, and himself.
Mr. Godlewski said that the meeting would coverhbetibdivision types discussed today, the
industrial and the administrative.

* |t is noted that Mr. Miller returned to the Board at thistime.

10. The application for a zone map change fromt®£&-1, for Alvin J. Heimsrepresented by
Progressive Engineering, Inc., on property locatedhe east side of CR 43, 3,800 ft. south of SR
120, in York Township, was presented at this time.

Ms. Gunden presented the Staff Report/Staff sl which is attached for review @ase
#000CR 43-150908-1.

Craig Batdorf, Progressive Engineering, Inc., 3B64R 15, Goshen, was present on behalf
of the petitioner but did not offer any commentsaloeady appearing on the Staff Report.

There were no remonstrators present.

A motion was made and secondBariot/Miller) that the public hearing be closed and the
motion was carried with a unanimous vote.

The Board examined said request and after duedewason and deliberation:
Motion: Action: Approve,Moved by Blake Doriot,Seconded by Tom Stump, that the Advisory
Plan Commission recommend to the Board of Countyi@issioners that this request for a zone
map change from R-2 to A-1 fédvin J. Heimsbe approved in accordance with the Staff Analysis.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vosi(nmary: Yes = 7).
Yes. Frank Lucchese, Roger Miller, Steve Warner, Ste#siwards, Tom Stump, Tony
Campanello, Blake Doriot.

11. The application for a zone map change from B-8-1, for Conrad B. Bailey, Trustee,
Conrad B. Bailey Revocable Trust, & Rhonda S. Bgilerustee, Rhonda S. Bailey Revocable
Trust, on property located on the east side of Divisibee3, south side of E. St. Joseph Street, and
west side of Charles Street; 800 ft. south of Vas&ireet (SR 120), common address of 105 E. St.
Joseph Street in Washington Township, was preseantids time.

Ms. Gunden did not present the Staff Reportf@taélysis, which is attached for review as
Case #105E. ST. JOSEPH STREET-150909-1. She instead advised the Plan Commission thaewhil
a request for a change from B-3 to B-1 was adweeltithe petitioners’ request is actually a change
from B-3 to B-2, along with tabling to December 8Gar proper advertisement.

There were no remonstrators present.

The public hearing was neither opened nor clo§de Plan Commission, however,
solicited public comment. None was offered.

The Board examined the request to table, and@ifterconsideration and deliberation:
Motion: Action: Table,Moved by Blake Doriot,Seconded by Roger Miller, that the Advisory
Plan Commission table this request for a zone rhapge from B-3 to B-1 fo€Conrad B. Bailey,
Trustee, Conrad B. Bailey Revocable Trust, & Rhon&a Bailey, Trustee, Rhonda S. Bailey
Revocable Trustuntil the December 10, 2015, meeting of the Elki@2ounty Advisory Plan
Commission. The motion was carried with a unanimais.



PAGE 7 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

* |t isnoted that Mr. Doriot stepped down from the Board at thistime.
12. Minor Change Request to Amend an Existing Site Pam Gindor PUD

A request for permission to remove an existing Sigh and replace it with an 8x3 sign at a
different location has been received, Mr. Auvildsat this time. The address of the subject property
is 66101 US 33, and the PUD was approved ApriB8,/1 The staff recommends that the change be
pronounced minor and that it be approved, concliied\uvil.

Mr. Warner, who knew the site well, observed th& occupied by a small manufacturing
company and thought the change was minor.

The Board examined said request and after duedssagon and deliberation:

Motion: Action: Approve,Moved by Steve WarneiSeconded by Frank Lucchese, that the above-
described change to Gindor PUD be considered arrohmnge and be approved by the Advisory
Plan Commission. The motion was carried with a imaus vote.

* |t isnoted that Mr. Doriot returned to the Board at thistime.
13.  Zoning Ordinance Amendment Draft Discussion

A marked-up copy of the full zoning ordinance ansbmmary chart were sent to the Board
members, began Mr. Auvil at this time. The amendnmmmittee has also met, and the
amendments are mainly for clarification.

Summarizing, Mr. Auvil said first that the ordirt@ncan no longer refer to sign subject
matter; it may only refer to sign type. The tesiection sign, for instance, can no longer be used.
The ordinance must also be amended to reflect esattgstate law regarding cell towers. The
Indiana Department of Natural Resources has atporesl that floodplain regulations be moved to
their own article and that they no longer be ingersed among existing articles.

Mr. Auvil said also that the amendment committe&ed him to convey to the Plan
Commission and the Board of Zoning Appeals its aday that the ordinance’s area limit on
accessory dwellings be upheld. Accessory dwellmgst remain accessory dwellings, held the
committee, despite the many recent petitions foessory dwellings of excessive area.

The new backlot development, or funneling, makeésia hybrid of backlot material found
in Kosciusko County’'s and LaGrange County’s ordogs) Mr. Auvil then said, and read aloud a
portion of the new Elkhart County material verbatide further explained that the first shoreline
figure of 65 ft. resulted from a determination ttied average Elkhart County water frontage figure
was between 60 and 65 ft., and he gave the examhplew development of a waterfront lot. A
waterfront lot to be occupied by one single-fanmidgidence must have a minimum of 65 ft. of
shoreline. The residence-occupied lot must havadalitional 35 ft. of shoreline if one residential
unit on a backlot will funnel to it.

Mr. Doriot observed that a lot with only 30 ft. lake frontage but sufficient road frontage
will be unbuildable under the new provisions. A elepmental variance will have to be requested,
said Mr. Godlewski. Mr. Doriot then concluded ththe new provisions will make currently
buildable parcels unbuildable without variances] sin. Godlewski agreed but pointed out that the
new provisions represent a middle point betweenmamuiation of funneling and altogether denial.



PAGE 8 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

Mr. Stump asked whether currently buildable lakeffrparcels can be grandfathered, and Mr.
Kolbus answered that they can through an additidhe funneling provisions.

The funneling provisions address new waterfromettgpment, noted Mr. Godlewski; Mr.
Doriot argued thatew describes buildings; and Mr. Godlewski said thatgrovisions are based on
dwelling units. Mr. Miller, Mr. Godlewski, and MDoriot then discussed language that could be
used to clarify that currently buildable lots oadis are unaffected by the new provisions. Mr.
Doriot expressed agreement to the new provisionsras as the new language discussed above
were added, and Mr. Godlewski reminded the Boaad plublic interest in regulation was what
motivated the Board’s consideration of the new &limg material. Mr. Doriot countered that what
more specifically motivated it was the recent thref one instance of multifamily backlot
development at a particular county location.

Dennis Pedler, Indiana Lake Association, 5065Bidiana Lake Rd., Bristol, asked whether
changes to lot-width minimums were among changekenzoning ordinance adopted February
2015. Mr. Godlewski confirmed they were not. MrdRee then explained that he recently needed a
lot-width variance to build a new Indiana Lake hoe®emost Indiana Lake homes south of the state
line have only 50 ft. of road frontage, and in tigh the present need for lot-width variances, he
expressed acquiescence to the possibility of adfuteed for water-frontage variances.

Mr. Warner said that the intent of the new fummglimaterial was not to create
nonconformities and asked Mr. Pedler whether he easfortable with the above-discussed
addition to the funneling language. Mr. Pedler'spanse was that while he suggested a minimum
of only 20 ft. of water frontage for the first rdsntial unit during early replacement-zoning-
ordinance discussions, he had no problem with tinesiatly proposed figures. He clarified that he
wanted a funnel lot serving two residential urotégature shoreline length of “two lots at least.”

Mr. Warner and Mr. Stump agreed that the intertheffunneling provisions is prevention
of overdevelopment, and Mr. Warner further assetat the Board of Zoning Appeals would be
quick to grant water-frontage variances in casesx&there is no threat of overdevelopment.

Designating lots that predate the February 1, 28fended ordinance conforming makes
sense, said Mr. Godlewski, and Mr. Doriot agreed. Kblbus said that the designation language
would be added to the draft to go before the Plami@ission December 2015.

Mr. Stump asked whether existing lots will be sgbjto the overdevelopment that the
funneling amendment exists to prevent. Mr. Kolbxgla@ned that existing waterfront lots that will
serve only one residential unit will not be affeteshereas existing waterfront lots that will serve
more than one unit will be subject to the new shadsl

The Board examined the zoning ordinance amendnasrgammarized above, and after due
consideration and deliberation:

Motion: Action: Approve, Moved by Roger Miller, Seconded by Tony Campanello, that the
Advisory Plan Commission set the redline zoningradce amendment draft for a December 10,
2015, public hearing with adding language for legahforming lots involved in backlot
development. The motion was carried with a unansnaude.



PAGE 9 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

14. The application for a zone map change from &-M-1 & M-2 to A-1, for Steven &
Marilyn Yoder, on property located on the north side of CR 1&0Q,ft. east of CR 116, in
Middlebury Township, was presented at this time.

Mr. Auvil presented the Staff Report/Staff Areay which is attached for review @ase
#CR 16-150911-1.

Mr. Doriot said that Steven Yoder, unaware that Bloriot was a member of the Plan
Commission, called him to discuss the petition. Driot said that he only told Mr. Yoder what to
expect and that they did not have any interactiat feopardized Mr. Doriot's impartiality. Mr.
Kolbus appreciated the disclosure.

Mr. Yoder, 55889 CR 43, Middlebury, stated thatdmeight the subject property in the
summer and would like to build a house on it arelths property for agriculture.

Mr. Stump observed the M-2 zoning at west andhmeest, as well as the M-1 and M-2
zoning on the subject parcel, and asked whethemimeg would hinder Middlebury’s eastward
growth. In response, Mr. Doriot asked Mr. Yoder vehke would build his home. Mr. Yoder said
on the area now zoned A-1 and “a little bit” inte tarea now zoned M-1.

Mr. Yoder then asked whether “[we can] have aco#SSR 16" if the present M-1 zone on
the subject parcel were left undisturbed. No respomas given. Mr. Miller then seconded Mr.
Stump’s concern after learning that the home waoldbe built on a portion of the parcel presently
zoned M-1 or M-2.

Board members then asked Mr. Yoder whether he dvrhonstrate against petitions to
rezone portions of the property immediately eadtisfown to enable such things as RV plants or
transfer lots. Probably not, he replied. Mr. Doaotl Mr. Campanello asked what agricultural uses
are permitted in the M zones, and Mr. Godlewskil shat no agricultural buildings can be built.
Mr. Kolbus added, though, that agricultural buigncan be built via variance and that M-zoned
property can be farmed.

Leaving the M zones undisturbed better servesteaktown expansion, increases the value
of the subject property, and makes its future satéer, Mr. Doriot then said. Mr. Yoder responded
by asking what he should do if he wants to buitthigken barn, and Board members recommended
asking for a variance or a partial rezoning.

Mr. Miller asked whether Mr. Yoder’s goal is theilay to build agricultural buildings, and
Mr. Kolbus confirmed. Mr. Yoder then said he haddenstood that the only way to build
agricultural buildings was rezoning and expreseggtést in a variance instead.

Elvie Frey, 1095 N 925 W, Shipshewana, is the &rowner of the subject property and
the parcel at northwest, ending -100-028, whiclused for RV storage and is now owned by
Winnebago. The Winnebago parcel is accessed dtwest from other Winnebago property that is
zoned M-2, and was the only property of Mr. Freitat Winnebago wanted to acquire, he said. At
the time he rezoned most of the subject propertyl teoning, he was unable to rezone the A-1
portion because, he said he was told, trucks comfnarg downtown Middlebury on CR 16 were
unwanted. He said he would never have sold theepipif M zoning were available on the A-1
portion, and further noted that the subject prgpadjoins a portion of the Pumpkinvine Nature
Trail.

There were no remonstrators present.

A motion was made and second®@dirner/Lucchese) that the public hearing be closed and
the motion was carried with a unanimous vote.



PAGE 10 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

Mr. Doriot asked Mr. Yoder whether he still wantedoning to proceed, and Mr. Yoder
said yes. Mr. Godlewski clarified that truck trafftannot access the M-zoned portions of the
subject property from CR 16 until the portion zoed is rezoned. Mr. Miller said that the Plan
Commission should hesitate to allow further M-1ingron CR 16, but Mr. Stump countered that
CR 16 sees all kinds of traffic. He added that &hi does not oppose Mr. Yoder’s goal, rezoning
to A-1 encumbers rezoning of properties farthet @ag hinders Middlebury expansion.

Mr. Kolbus asked whether petition input from Mieldury had been received, and Mr. Auvil
said no. Mr. Kolbus asked whether petition inpotirMiddlebury could be requested before the
December 2015 meeting of the Board of County Comsionigrs. No answer came.

The Board examined said request and after duedewason and deliberation:

Motion: Action: Approve, Moved by Blake Doriot, Seconded by Frank Lucchese, that the
Advisory Plan Commission recommend to the Boar@ainty Commissioners that this request for
a zone map change from A-1 & M-1 & M-2 to A-1 fSteven & Marilyn Yodere approved in
accordance with the Staff Analysis.

Vote: Motion passedsimmary: Yes =5, No = 2, Abstain = 0).

Yes. Frank Lucchese, Steve Warner, Steven Edwards, Tom$ Blake Doriot.

No: Roger Miller, Tony Campanello.

15. The application for a zone map change from k-2A-1, for Atlee O. & Mary Jane
Bontrager represented by J. Charles Zercher, Kindig & SI&&, on property located on the
northeast corner of CR 56 and CR 100, common asldfe30359 CR 56 in Locke Township, was
presented at this time.

Mr. Auvil presented the Staff Report/Staff Argy which is attached for review @ase
#30359CR 56-151005-1.

Charles Zercher, Kindig & Sloat, PC, 102 Heritéavy., Nappanee, who was present on
behalf of the petitioners, reported that they idtém subdivide the subject property in spring or
summer 2016, build a small house for themselvea parcel they keep, and sell the rest of the
property to one of their children.

There were no remonstrators present.

A motion was made and second@ubriot/Lucchese) that the public hearing be closed and
the motion was carried with a unanimous vote.

The Board examined said request and after duedewason and deliberation:

Motion: Action: Approve,Moved by Blake Doriot,Seconded by Tom Stump, that the Advisory
Plan Commission recommend to the Board of Countyi@issioners that this request for a zone
map change from M-2 to A-1 féstlee O. & Mary Jane Bontragebe approved in accordance with
the Staff Analysis.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vomithmary: Yes = 7).

Yes. Frank Lucchese, Roger Miller, Steve Warner, Ste¥wards, Tom Stump, Tony
Campanello, Blake Doriot.



PAGE 11 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

16.  Training Follow-Up

Mr. Godlewski asked Mr. Warner whether he wanteskt up a follow-up meeting after the
December 10, 2015, Plan Commission meeting to sksthie outcome of October 7, 2015, training.
Mr. Warner said he did. Training attendees inclgdieff Burbrink, Sue Weirick, Jennea Schirr, and
Lori Snyder should attend the follow-up meetingd $4r. Warner and Mr. Campanello.

17. The application for a zone map change from RHLto A-1, forGregory T. & Bethany S.
Shank, on property located on the west side of CR 23thnof CR 146 E., common address of
69405 CR 23 in Jackson Township, was presentéuksdirne.

Mr. Auvil presented the Staff Report/Staff Aygs$, which is attached for review @ase
#69405CR 23-151005-1.

Gregory Shank, 69405 CR 23, New Paris, stated ttimatproposal will increase his
property’s value and make his property’s zoningighedion consistent with its current use and
surrounding uses. The agricultural activities ogngron the property are modest, he noted.

There were no remonstrators present.

A motion was made and secondgdcchese/Doriot) that the public hearing be closed and
the motion was carried with a unanimous vote.

The Board examined said request and after duedssagon and deliberation:

Moation: Action: Approve,Moved by Blake Doriot,Seconded by Roger Miller, that the Advisory
Plan Commission recommend to the Board of Countyi@issioners that this request for a zone
map change from M-1/R-1 to A-1 f@regory T. & Bethany S. Shanke approved in accordance
with the Staff Analysis.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vosi(nmary: Yes = 7).

Yes. Frank Lucchese, Roger Miller, Steve Warner, Ste#iwards, Tom Stump, Tony
Campanello, Blake Doriot.

* It is noted that Mr. Miller stepped down from the Board at this time due to a potential conflict of
interest and was not present for the remainder of the meeting.

18. The application for an amendment to a site plsumpport drawing for a Detailed Planned
Unit Development known aBRISTOL PARK FOR INDUSTRY - PHASE 4 DPUD M-2for
Universal Trailer of Indiana, LLC, represented bywarlch, Brady & Weaver, Inc., on property
located on the southwest corner of CR 4 and CR&8mon address of 2020 Blakesley Parkway in
Washington Township, was presented at this time.

Ms. Gunden presented the Staff Report/Staff Amalyshich is attached for review as
Case #2020BLAKESLY PARKWAY (CR 29)-150929-1.

Debra Hughes, Marbach, Brady & Weaver, Inc., 3880thview Dr., Elkhart, was present
on behalf of the petitioner. She reminded the Bdlaatlthe first phase of construction will resalt i
about five acres under roof and that the secondedgllt in similar area. Immediately west of the
site of the landscape berm the petitioners aresptiyr required to construct to screen residential
uses lies a toll road retention pond and a DPUD a+ie, and the first residence west of the subject
parcel is west of the DPUD M-1 zone, Ms. Hughegdot

Ms. Hughes, assuring the Board that the petitiortends to build the entire berm, said that



PAGE 12 ELKHART COUNTY PLAN COMMISSION 11-12-15

permission to build only a first, south phase nalpreserve topsoil needed elsewhere to keep the
site looking good and capable of growing vegetation

Mr. Campanello asked whether, at the time of ahiiDPUD approval, the petitioner
intended to prepare the site “for that next phaBéchard Pfleging, Universal Trailer of Indiana,
LLC, 1503 McNaughton Ave., Elkhart, confirmed tisaich preparation was the original plan but
that budgeting calls for the request to delay Iheltm construction until the time of the building’s
second phase. A delay removes the need to haullditicamal topsoil, said Mr. Pfleging, and
preservation of topsoil is necessary for MS4 stadiibn, added Mr. Doriot.

Mr. Stump asked whether the berm was a countyiregant, and Ms. Hughes said yes.
Board members then asked why, and Mr. Godlewski thait according to the zoning ordinance
buffering must appear between manufacturing usdsresidential uses. Board members and Ms.
Hughes expressed understanding, with Ms. Hugheagnttat the toll road pond site is zoned
residential and that subject-site topsoil has tmbeed anyway.

There were no remonstrators present.

A motion was made and second@ubriot/Lucchese) that the public hearing be closed and
the motion was carried with a unanimous vote.

The Board examined said request and after duedssagon and deliberation:
Motion: Action: Approve, Moved by Tom Stump,Seconded by Tony Campanello, that the
Advisory Plan Commission recommend to the Bristowm Board that this request for an
amendment to a site plan / support drawing for tail@el Planned Unit Development known as
BRISTOL PARK FOR INDUSTRY - PHASE 4 DPUD M-be approved in accordance with the
Staff Analysis.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vomitnmary: Yes = 6, Absent = 1).
Yes. Frank Lucchese, Steve Warner, Steven Edwards, Tam Tony Campanello, Blake
Doriot.
Absent: Roger Miller.

19. A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Mtiot and seconded by Mr. Edwards.
With a unanimous vote, the meeting was adjourné@:dtl a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Daniel Dean, Recording Secretary

Steve Warner, Chairman



